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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Veranda Excel
Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited) (the “Company"”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, and its loss, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Board's report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

« When we read the Board's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 ‘The
Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect

e preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
' including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
tenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
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application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

<)

d)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure
A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report, in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the
year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company .

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March
31, 2023.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “CARO"/ the “Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No: 008072S)

,C/—l‘ftul L:l}\./

Ananthi Amarnath

Partner

(Membership No. 209252)

UDIN : 23209252BGXMLE1980

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private
Limited (formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited) (the "Company”) as of March 31,
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note"”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
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and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria
for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No: 008072S)

Ananthi Amarnﬁ‘n
Partner

(Membership No. 209252)
UDIN : 23209252BGXMLE1980

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and thebooks of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best ofour knowledge and belief, we
state that:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right-of-use
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-use assets were physically verified during
the year by the Management which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at
reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties. In respect of immovable
properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed in the financial statements as
right-of use asset as at the balance sheet date, the lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on information and explanations given to
us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed
on such physical verification of inventories/alternate procedures performed as
applicable, when compared with the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time of the
year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility from banks or
financial institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iii) The Company has made investments in companies during the year, in respect of which:

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting
under clause (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The investments made during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

(c,d,e,f) | The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans and hence
reporting under clause (iii)(c),(d),(e) and (f) the Order is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities
provided, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.
(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, In respect of statutory dues:
TSR (a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
f‘/-—-’\"é‘ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues

applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate
authorities.

CHENNAI
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There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b)

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes:

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions
relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (a)

During the year, the Company has rescheduled the terms of repayment of loan with one of
its lenders. Having regard to the terms of such approved rescheduling, in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of loans, or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the
year.

(b)

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
Government or any Government authority.

(c)

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

(d)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary.

(f)

The Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary as per details below and has not defaulted in the repayment of such loans raised.

(Rs. In lakhs)

Details of | Remark
security s*
pledged

Name of the Relation

subsidiary

Nameof Amountof
lender loan

Nature of
loantaken

8,150.000. K. Shah Subsidiary | Shares of None
Education Private the
Limited Subsidiary

Working Capital | Hinduja Leyland
Loan Finance Limited

(x) (a)

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the
year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a)

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.
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(xiii)

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013.

(xv)

In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors or directors of it's holding company or directors of it's subsidiary
company or persons connected with such directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)

(a,b,c)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable.

(d)

As represented to us by the Management, the Group does not have any CIC as part of the
group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii)

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 400.91 lakhs during the financial
year covered by our audit and Rs. 1,011.42 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial
year.

(xviii)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)

The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover
of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore of more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable for the year.

Place: Chennai

Date: May 27, 2023

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No: 008072S)

[QL*L A \-I}V

Ananthi Amarnath

Partner

(Membership No. 209252)

UDIN : 23209252BGXMLE1980




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USOT00TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

g | Asat Asat
Farficulars NOteS | Narch 31, 2023 March 31,2022
I. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 2.01 0.54
(b) Other Intangible assets 4 37.70 165 81
(¢) Right of use asset s 440840
(d) Financial Assels
(1) Investments 6 45814.15 -
(1) Other financial assets 7 170.39 -
(e) Deferred Tax Asset (net) 8
(1) Income Tax Assets 9 40.22 -
Total non-current assets 50.472.87 166.35
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 10 18.70 1974
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 11 59.40 099
(11) Cash and cash cquivalents 12 4.79 8.53
(c) Other current assets 13 744.78 21499
Total current assets 827.67 244.25
TOTAL ASSETS 51.300.54 410.60
ILEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 601.34 100.00
(b) Other equity 15 1621627 (1.364.87)
Total equity 16,817.61 (1.264.87)
2, Non - Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 15.486.04 -
(ii) Lease Liabilities 5 4.284.35 -
(iii) Other financial liabilitics 17 11.064.49 .
(b} Provisions 18 .59 3.80
30.835.47 3.50
3. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 19 2,622.06 1.154.63
(i1) Trade payables 20
(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 432.36 4.21
(b) lt‘ll'fl] mnst.mdmg dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and 116.68 46303
Small Enterprises
(1ii) Lease Liabilities 3 159.03 -
(1v) Other financial liabilities 21 277.04 41.52
(b) Other current liabilities 23 40.29 812
(¢) Provisions 22 - 0.16
Total current liabilities 3,647.46 1,671.67
TOTAL LIABILITIES 34,482.93 1,675.47
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 51,300.54 410.00

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Clygrtered Accountants

-/

Andnthi Amarnath /

Partner
Membership No: 209252

K Praveen Kumar
Director
DIN: 00591450

the Board of Directors

(IR RY

Dircctor
DIN: 00591483

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023

Place: Chennai
Date; May 27, 2023

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USO100TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupecs (Lakhs). unless otherwise stated]

For the vear ended

For the year ended

Particulars
articulars Notes | March 31,2023 March 31,2022
A Income
Revenue from operations 24 294.39 70.78
Other Income 25 168.32 -
Total Income 462,71 70.78
B Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26 0.37 0.17
Purchase of stock - in - trade 27 5.32 2344
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 0.67 20,37
Employee benefits expenses 29 64.37 12938
Other expenses 32 240,02 86536
Total expenses 310.75 1.038.92
C Profit / (Loss) before Finance Costs, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation|
Expense (EBITDA) 151.96 (968.14)
Finance Costs 30 641.15 4328
Depreciation and amortization expense 31 245.57 90.71
D Loss before tax (734.76) (1,102.13)
E Tax expense 33
Current tax . -
Deferred tax - -
Total Tax Expense - -
F  Loss for the year (734.76) (1,102.13)
G Other comprehensive Income/ (loss)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations 4.50 -
Income-tax relating to items that will not be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit obligations - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 4.50 -
H  Total Comprehensive loss for the year (730.26) (1,102.13)
I Earning / (Loss) per share 34
Basic Earnings per share (Nominal value per equity share of Rs. 10) (25.62) (1021
Diluted Eamings per share (Nominal value per equity share of Rs. 10) (25.62) (110.21)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

A

Ananthi Amarnath
Partner
Membership No: 209252

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023

=

~

Place: Chennai

For and on behalf,

K Praveen Kumar
Director
DIN: 00591450

Date: May 27, 2023

he Board of Directors

BB

R Rangarajan
Director
DIN: 00591483

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
CIN No.: USOT00TN2019PTC126711
[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31,2022

Cash flows from operating activities

L.oss before tax (734.76) (1,102.13)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 245.57 90.71
Interest Income (1.61) =
Finance costs 641.15 4328
150,35 (968.14)
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in inventories 1.04 20.34
Decrease in other assets (583.82) (122.61)
Decrease in trade receivables (58.41) (0.99)
Increase in provisions 113 396
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 11.096.66 (524)
Increase in trade payables 81.80 244 49
Cash used in operations 10,688.75 (828.19)
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (40.22) -
Net cash from / (used) in operating activities (A) 10,648.53 (828.19)
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital Expenditure of property, plant and equipment & intangible asscts (1.97) (92.08)
Investment in subsidiary (45.814.15) -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (45.816.12) (92.08)
Cash Mlows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (net of share application money) 18,700.00 -
Proceeds from short term borrowings 5.077.43 945,50
Repayment of short term borrowings (3.610,00) (13.30)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 15.486.04 -
Payment of Lcase Liability (170.26) =
Finance Costs incurred for issue of preferential allotment (2.01) -
Finance Costs (317.35) (5.54)
Net cash from financing activities (C) 35,163.85 926.66
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (3.74) 6.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.53 2.14
Cash and cash equivalents at cnd of the year (Refer Note 12) 4.79 8.53

Notes:

I. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 7 on Cash Flow
Statements, Cash and cash equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits and cash cquivalents

which are short-term and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments."

Balances with banks - current accounts 4.79 851
Cash on hand - 0.02
4.79 8.53

2. Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activitics.




Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Particulars Marc?l?l{ 2022 Proceeds Repayments Other adjustments Msrc:;:‘.tzozs
Long-Term borrowings - 15.486.04 - - 15,486.04
Shorn-Term borrowings

(including Current maturity 1.154.63 507743 (3.610.00) - 2,622.06
to Long-Term borrowings)

Total 1,154.63 20,563.47 (3,610.00) - 18,108.10
Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Particulars Ma rc?is;lt. 2021 Proceeds Repayments Other adjustments Marc;:;r.t 2022
Long-Term borrowings - - - - -
Short-Term borrowings

(including Current maturity 22243 945.50 (13.30) - 1.154 63
to Long-Term borrowings)

Total 222,43 945.50 (13.30) - 1,154.63

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chgrtered Accountants

Ananthi Amarnath /

Partner
Membership No: 209252

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023

raveen Kumar
Director
DIN: 00591450

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023

: Board of Directors

-
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R Rangarajan

Director

DIN: 00591483

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions

Private Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: UROT00TN2019PTC126711
[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

(A) Equity share capital

Changes in Restated Changes in
AANEES balance at - g I Balance at the
Balance at the Equity Hebeiunt equity end of
: beginning of the Share Capital phi & share capital
Year z of the : the current
current reporting due to during .
. y current reporting
year prior period p the current )
reporting year
errors year
Year

2021 100.00 - 100.00 - 100.00

2022 100.00 - 100.00 501.34 601.34
(B) Other equity

Deemed Security Retained
Particulars Equity Premium TEMEnG Total
e Earnings
contribution Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2021 - - (262.74) (262.74)
Loss for the vear - - (1,102.13) (1,102.13)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - =
Balance as at March 31, 2022 & - (1,364.87) (1,364.87)
Loss for the year - - (734.76) {734.76)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - 4.50 4.50
Issued during the year 114.75 18,198.66 - 18,313.41
Share issue expenses (2.01) - (201)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 114.75 18,196.65 (2,095.13) 16,.216.27

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
—

ADAALA
Ananthi Amarnath /
Partner
Membership No: 209252

Place: Chennai
Date: May 27, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

. Praveen Kumar
Director
DIN: 00591450

Place: Chennan
Date: May 27, 2023

k‘%»%ﬁg

R Rangarajan
Director
DIN: 00591483

Place: Chennan
Date: May 27, 2023




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: UBOT00TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

2.’\

Corporate information

Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited ) (the
"Company™ or “VXLS") was incorporated on January 4, 2019 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, with its registered
office at Old No 54, New No 34, Thirumalai Pillai Road, T. Nagar. Chennai - 600017, Tamil Nadu. VXLS is offering affordable
online learning solutions for Chartered Accountancy course through experienced faculty members.

Exemption from preparation of consolidated financial statements

The Company has investments in subsidiarics. The Holding company, Veranda Leamning Solutions Limited. shall present the
consolidated financial statements. The Company has therefore availed the exemption under paragraph 4(a) of Ind AS 110 and shall
satisfy the conditions for exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements as per Companics (Accounts) Amendments
Rules, 2016 and thercby does not present consolidated financial statements,

Consequently, the accounting policies mentioned herein relate to the standalone financial statements of the Company

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

a) Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements- This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies
rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial
statements.

b) Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
‘accounting estimates” and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes
in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements,

c) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and off setting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial
statement,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Basis of preparation and presentation

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for Certain financial assets and liabilitics measured at fair
value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilitics,

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics,
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.c. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an assct or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used
to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.
The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two decimals).




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: US0100TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

3 Significant Accounting Policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:
i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading:
iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets arc classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
1) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle:
i) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading:
i) Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents.
The Company has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

b) Revenue Recognition
Operating revenue:
Revenue is recognised o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The company derives its revenue from Edutech services (online) by providing comprehensive leaming programmes.

A. Onling revenue - Revenue from sale of online courses is recognised based on satisfaction of performance obligations as below:

i) Supply of books is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
entitled as per the contract / understanding in exchange for the goods or services.

i) Supply of online content is recognised upfront upon access being provided for the uploaded content to the learners.

iii) Supply of hosting service is recognised over the period of license of access provided to the learners at an amount that reflects the
consideration entitled as per the contract / understanding in exchange for such services.

Other operating revenue:

Shipping revenue is recognised at the time of delivery to end customers. Shipping revenue received towards deliveries subsequent to
the year end is considered as Deferred revenue which is included in other current liabilities.

Revenue is recognised on accrual basis, net of refunds and taxes.

C

—

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Presentation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset. if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be repiaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date, are disclosed as capital advances under
long term loans and advances and the cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as
capital work in progress.




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: US0O100TN2019PTC126711

|[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs). unless otherwise stated|

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derccognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)
Office Equipment 5
Computers and data processing units 3

The Useful life is as per Schedule 11 of the companies Act, 2013

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. For deletion/ disposals, the
depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such assets have been discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets,
costing Rs.5,000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

d

—

Intangible assets

Internally generated intangible asset are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost comprises of all directly attributable costs
necessary 1o create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intemally-generated intangible assets arc reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible under development

Costs incurred during research phase are charged to profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred. Development phase expenses
are initially recognized as intangible asscts under development until the development phase is complete. upon which the amount 1s
capitalized as intangible asset.

Useful life and amortisation of intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as cither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the
useful cconomic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period.

The amortisation expense on intangible asscts with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Assets Category Estimated useful life (in years)

Content Development Cost 2

¢) Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before
the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the Company does
not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for
issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USOI00TN2019PTC126711

u/\ll amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

f) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction and production of a qualifying asset arc capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowings costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur.

a) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where
considered necessary, Cost is determined by First in First Out basis. Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to the point of
sale.

h) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts tor financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for all taxable temporary difterences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, Where there is deferred tax
assets arising from carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: UB0O100TN2019PTC126711
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i) Retirement and other employee bencfits
Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The costs of providing benefits under this plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at
cach year-end. Separate actuarial valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses
for the plan is recognized in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

Compensated Absences
Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated balances are provided for based on

actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. Leave encashment liability of an employee, who
leaves the Company before the close of the year and which is remaining unpaid, is provided for on actual computation basis.

j) Impairment of non financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

k) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These
provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities
are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of contingent liabilities only when
converted into demand.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at
the end of the reporting period. and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not
recognised in the financial statements.

1) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with original maturity of less
than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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m) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows arc presented using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
form an integral part of an entity's cash management. bank overdrafis are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of cash flow statement.

n) Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

0) Leases
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
(1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(i11) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (*ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for
all lcase arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease

The right-of-use assets arc initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

e

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful
lite of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrving amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.c. the higher of
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash
flows that arc largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the assct belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if
the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

_—

Segment reporting

Based on internal reporting provided to the Chief operating decision maker, the Company’s operations predominantly related to sale of
comprehensive leamning programs and, accordingly, this is the only operating segment. The management committee reviews and
monitors the operating results of the business segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment using profit or loss and return on capital employed,

p
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q) Financial instruments

3A

Financial Assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets , which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of Minancial
assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

(i1) Subsequent measurement:

-Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

-Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

-Financial assets at fair value through profit OR loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories arc fair valued through profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company use “Expected Credit Loss™ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment assessment of
financial assets other than those measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). Expected credit losses arc measured through a
loss allowance at an amount equal (o:

a) The 12-months expected credit losses (expeeted eredit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

b Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial
instrument)

For trade receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivable. Further the Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of the
trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking cstimates are
analysed. For other asscts, the Company uses 12 months ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no significant increase in
credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature
are directly recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

(i1) Subsequent measurement:
Financial liabilitics are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing w ithin one
year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1o the short maturity of these instruments,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty :

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 3. the Directors of the Company are required 10
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilitics that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered (o be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates, The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates arc recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects both current and future periods, The following are the significant
areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

« Usetul lives of Property, plant and equipment

« Useful lives of Intangible assets

« Fair valuc of financial assets and financial liabilities

+ Going Concern Assessment
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Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USOI00TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless othenwise stated)

5 Leases
(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leascs:

Particulars Apat Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Right-of-use assets
Buildings** 4,408.40 -
Total 4,408.40 -
Lease liabilities ***
Current 159.03 -
Non-Current 4,284.35 -
Total 4,443.38 -
Movement of Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities
**Description of Assets Buildings Total
1. Gross carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 - -
Reclassification from property,plant & equipment - -
Additions during the year - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 -
Additions during the year 4,525.36 4,525.36
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2023 4.525.36 4,525.36
11. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at March 31, 2021 -
Reclassification from property.plant & equipment - -
Depreciation / amortisation charge during the year - -
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 - -
Depreciation / amortisation charge during the year 116.96 116.96
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 116.96 116.96
111. Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 4,408.40 4.408.40
111. Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 - -
+++[Description of Liabilities .uarcil\if.‘ 2023 m"‘h‘;;‘f oo
Balance at the beginning - -
Add: Lease liabilities recognised during the year 4,525.36 -
Add: interest cost accrued during the year 88.28 -
Less: Payment of lease liabiitics including interest (170.26) -
Closing Balance 4,443.38 -

# | CHENNAI-17 ) + |
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Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.

: USOLOOTN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated|

5.1

5.2

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit
and Loss.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 & March 31,2022 on an
undiscounted basis:
_ As at As at
Particulars
A March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Less than one vear 159.03 -
One to five years 1,108.98 -
More than five years 3.175.37 -
Total 4,443.38 -
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
% As at As at
Particulars
ATFEwAT March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets (Refer Note 31) 116.96 =
Total 116.96 -
Interest expense (included in finance costs) (Refer Note 30) 88.28 -
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 1581 3
(Refer Note 32) ’
Amounts recognized in cash Mlow statement
Particulars As at Asat
g March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total cash outflows for leases {170.26) =

Critical judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of buildings, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

(a) If there are significant penaltics to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend and not
terminate.

(b) If any lease hold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value the Company is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

(c) Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects the assessment. and that is within the control of the lessee. During the current financial year, there was no revision in the
lease terms.

(v) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing the assets used in the Company's operations. The majority of extension and termination options held arc exercisable
only by the Company and not with the respective lessor.




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: UBDI00TNZO19PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

6 Non-current investments
Investments in equity instruments subsidiaries at cost (Refer Note 41)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
J K Shah Education Private Limited (Refer Note 6.1) 34.917.66 -
Deemed Investment - J K Shah Education Private Limited (Refer Note 6,2) 10,896.49 -
45,814.15 -

6.

During the year, in accordance with Share purchase agreement dated October 31. 2022, Company acquired 63.14% sharcholding control of J K Shah

Education Private Limited (JK Shah) consisting of 20,57.011 Shares of Rs. 10 Each for a total consideration of Rs. 26.642.56 Lakhs. Subsequent to
this acquisition, Company further acquired 12,56,728 shares for a consideration of Rs. 7.139.13 lakhs. Consequent to this acquisition, shareholding of
the Company in JK Shah stands at 76% as at 31 March 2023. Rs. 1,135.97 lakhs of transaction cost incurred which are directly attributable fo this

acquisition has been capitalised with cost of investment.

>
=

2 Further, as per the aforesaid Share purchase agreement, Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited has an unconditional obligation to purchase

balance 24% of the equity share capital (23,45,609 equity shares of JKSEPL) within 3 years from the date of share purchase agreement 1.e October 31
2025. Accordingly, this obligation meets the definition of financial lability as per Ind AS 32 and has been recognized as “deferred consideration
obligation™ by discounting the estimated future cash flows at their present values with a corresponding debit to "Deemed Investements”

7 Other Financial Asscts

Net deferred tax liability

Particulars AL at As 8
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits 56.37
Financial guaranice assets 114.02 -
170.39 -
8 Deferred tax liability
Particulars A% &l Asut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax asset
On property plant and equipment 17.66 9.20
On Right of use asset B.81 -
On expenses allowable on payment basis 9.35 (9.20)
Loan Processing Charges (35.82) -

Based on assessment of probability of taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset pertaining to unabsorbed business loss and depreciation loss
amounting to Rs. 513.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - 354.44 Lakhs) can be utilised, the company has not recognized deferred tax asset thereon. The
Company shall continue to assess the recoverability of such deferred tax asset at the end of every reporting period. (Refer Note 330

9 Income Tax Assets

N As at As at
FarEotim March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
TDS Receivables 40,22 -

40.22 -
10 Inventories
Valued at lower of cost and Net Realisable value unless otherwise stated

¥ As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Packing Material - 0.37
Stock in Trade (Books) 18.70 19.37

18.70 19.74
11 Trade Receivables
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good

{a) Considered good - Secured

(b) Considered good - Unsecured

(c) Have significant increase in Credit Risk
(d) Credit impaired

59.40

0.99

59.40

0.99




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USO100TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

111

Trade reccivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months - 1-3 More than 3
Total
months 1 year years years

(1) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good R

5940 - 59.40
(1) Undisputed trade receivables — Credit impaired -
(111) Disputed trade receivables considered good - =
(1v) Disputed trade receivables - Credit impaired - - - -

59.40 - - 59.40
Less : Allowance for credit loss =
Total trade receivables 59.40

As at March 31, 2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
SRR Less than 6 6 months - 1-3 More than 3 .
lotal
maonths 1 year years years

1) Undisputed trade receivables — considered goo
L RERES dezed good 0.99 - - 099
(11) Undisputed trade reccivables — Credit impaired - - - -
(111) Disputed trade receivables considered good - - - -
(iv) Disputed trade receivables - Credit impaired

0.99 - - 0.99
Less : Allowance for credit loss - -
Total trade receivables 0.99

11.2 Trade Receivables includes receivables outstanding from customers constituting individually 5% or more of the total trade receivables as
at March 31, 2023 15 Rs. 59.40 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: Nil).

12

Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Balances with banks - in current accounts 479 851
Cash - on - hand x 0.02
4.79 8.53
Other current asscts
As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Unsecured considered good
Balance with Government Authorities 31447 132,52
Prepaid Expenses 11238 272
Advances to vendors 1321 79.22
Advance to Employees - 0.53
Unamortized loan processing charges 304.72 =
T44.78 214.99




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USDI00TN2019PTC126711
[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

14 Share capital

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Authorised share capital
1,00,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 1.000.00 100.00
1,000.00 100.00
Issued share capital
60,13.404 (March 31, 2022: 10,00.000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 cach 601,34 100.00
601.34 100.00
Subscribed and fully paid up share capital
60,13,404 (March 31, 2022: 10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 601.34 100.00
601.34 100.00
Notes:
i Asat Asat
Farficglars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
i Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed o oF Shres Amount No of Shares Araount
Balance at the beginning of the vear 10,00,000 100.00 10,00,000 100,00
Issued during the year 50,13.404 501.34 - -
Balance at the end of the year 60,13,404 601.34 10,00,000 100.00

14.2 Since the inception, the company has neither issued any shares as bonus shares nor for consideration other than cash and has not bought

back any shares.

14.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company
a. The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. The equity shares of the company having par

value of Rs.10/- rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights.
b. The Company has not declared dividend on equity shares,

¢. In the event of liquidation, sharcholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be proportionate to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder

14 4 The Company has allotted equity shares at face value of Rs. 10/- each during the vear as follows

Board meeting date

Shareholder

No. of shares

allotted
No of shares a’l beginning of the 10.00,000
previous year
Additions during the year -

No of shares at beginning of the year 10,00,000
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited

November 16, 2022 (formerly known as Veranda Leaming Solutions Private 50,13,404

Limited) and its nominees
Total 60,13,404

14.5 Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders on October 12, 2022, Company has issued rights shares to all shareholders. Consequently,
the basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed for all the periods presented in the Standalone Financial Statements of the
Company on the basis of the new number of equity shares in accordance with Ind AS 33 — Earnings per Share

14.6 The authorised share capital of the company has increased from Rs. 100 Lakhs to Rs.1,000 Lakhs pursuant to the approval of the
sharcholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on May 31, 2022
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14.7

14.8

14.9

Shares held by holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31,2022

Nuate oftheshue holder No of shares | % of Holding| No of shares " [.’f
Holding

Veranda Learning Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veranda 60,13.394 100% 9.99.990 100%

Learning Solutions Private Limited) and its nominees

Mr. R Rangarajan* 10 0.00%)| 10 0.00%

*shares held on behalf of Veranda Learning Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited) from

October 16, 2020,

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Name ot i sharahoide No of shares |% of Holding| No of shares - (.nf
Holding |
Veranda L.earning Solutions Limited 60.13,394 100% 9.99,990 100%
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Shareholding of promoters*
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the promotor No of % of % (_.hange , % of = (.Imngc
; during the | No of shares ; during the
shares Holding Holding
year year
Kalpathi § Aghoram - 0.00%| Nil - 0.00%)| Nil
Kalpathi S Ganesh - 0.00%| Nil - 0.00% Nil
Kalpathi S Suresh - 0.00%| Nil - 000% Nil
Veranda Learning Soultions Limited 60,13,394 100.00% Nil 9.,99.990 100.00% Nil
(formerly known as Veranda Learning
Solutions Private Limited)
* Promoter as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 has been considered for the purpose of disclosure.
Other equity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Retained Earnings (2.095.13) (1.364.87)
Securities Premium Account 18,196.65 -
Deemed Equity contribution - Corporate Guarantee 114.75 -
16,216.27 (1.364.87)
a) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (1.364.87) (262.74)
Loss for the year (734.76) (1,102.13)
Other Comprehensive Income 4.50 -
Balance at the end of the year (2,095.13) (1,364.87)
b) Securities Premium Account
Balance at the beginning of the year - :
Additions during the year 18,198.66 -
Utilised during the year (2.01) -
Balance at the end of the year 18,196.65 -
¢) Deemed Equity contribution - Corporate Guarantee
Balance at the beginning of the year e
Deemed equity contribution during the year 114.75 -
Balance at the end of the year 114.75 -

On November 16, 2022, the Company allotted 50,13.404 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10 cach for cash, at a price of Rs. 373 per
cquity share (including premium of Rs, 363 per share), aggregating to Rs. 18,700 Lakhs to the existing sharcholders.
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Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USOI00TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated)

16 Long term borrowings

Particulars Azt Xsut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Term loans: (Refer Note 16.1)

From others

Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited 1,412.74 -

Piramal Enterprises Limited 8.149.14 -

From related parties (unsecured) ( Refer Note 40)

Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited 1,231.29 :

Veranda IAS Learning Solutions Private Limited 1,105.50 -

Veranda Management Learning Solutions Private Limited 1,105.50 -

Veranda Race Leamning Solutions Private Limited 1381 87 i

(formerly Bharathiyar Education Private Limited) B

SSI Ventures Private Limited 1,100.00 -
15,486.04 -

16.1 Details of Borrowing

Amount | Amount as
as at 31- at 31- Interest Rate / Security
' N S ; .
Party Name March- March- Repayment Schedule provided
2023 2022
120 monthly installments
il v - B hiy 11% / Unsecure
Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited 1,500.00 from April 2023 1% / Unsecured
% / Pledee 0/
; 5 y s 24 Monthly installments from 19:245% A Tledge o.I'SI iy i
Piramal Enterprises Limited - | 7.649.14 = April 2024 the total share capital of the
e target company*
10.75 / a) Pledge of 51%
; ; of the total share capital of]
’ 48 ly installments from
Piramal Enterprises Limited - 11 500.00 - A :‘]'I","g;: INSLAliMEnts from {, ¢ target company*
pri < b) Charge on current assets
of the company
120 thly installments 4
Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited | 1,305.00 ’ fmm“:’;m Somy S [1155%/ Unsecured
Veranda [AS Learning Solutions Private 120 monthly installments <50 o
Listited 1.171.68 ~ | from April 2023 11.55% / Unsecured
Veranda Management Learning Solutions 120 monthly installments $59: / Unsecure
Private Limited L " |from April 2023 1% Enseaured
\".cr:f.nda Race Learning Solutions Private 1 464.60 LY nmnl_h]_\' installments 11.55% / Unsecured
Limited from April 2023
. A Repayable in Single i
= . . . 3 4.00% / »
SSI Ventures Private Limited 1,100.00 Isstalleent on January 2023 14.00% / Unsecured
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (376.06) -
Total 15.486.04 -
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17 Other Non current financial liabilities

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits 168.00 -
Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note 6.2) 10,896.49 -
Total 11,064.49 =
18 Long Term Provisions
';;:jculurs Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 40.2) 0.58 2.15
Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 40.3) 0.01 1.65
0.59 3.80
19 Short term borrowings
. As at As at
Farticilars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loan repayable on demand
From related parties (unsecured) ( Refer Note 41)
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited B
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited) 24600 L1463
Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 16.1) 376.06 g
2,622.06 1,154.63

19.1 The inter corporate loans are availed at interest rate of 7% -7.55% p.a. and repayable on demand (Unsecured).
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Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USO100TN2019PTC126711

[ All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

20 Trade payables

. As at As at
Particulars ’
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Total outstanding dues of creditors of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer

432.36 4.21
Note 20.1)
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpriscs 116.68 463.03

549.04 467.23

* Trade payables amounting to Rs. 19.28 Lakhs ( PY - Rs. 1.60 Lakhs) is payable to related parties. (Refer Note 41(c))

20.1 Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information collected by the management and represents the principal amount pavable to these enterprises (Refer Note 35).

20.2 Trade Payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than Total
year years years 3 years
(1) MSME - 412.01 20.35 - - - 432.36
(it) Others - 115.04 1.64 - . - 116.68
(1i1) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -

20.3 Trade Pavables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2022

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 1-2 . _2-.! . More thlarl Total
vear years years 3 years
(1) MSME - - 421 - - - 4.21
(ii) Others - - 463.03 - - - 463.03
(i1i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - -
21 Other Financial Liabilitics
} Asat As at
i March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Interest payable * 277.04 41.52
277.04 41.52

* Interest payable amounting to Rs. 244,42 Lakhs ( PY - Rs. 41.52 Lakhs) is payable to related party. (Refer Note 41(c))

22 Short Term Provisions

Asat As at

FaEtma March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 40.2) - -
Provision for Compensated Absences (Refer Note 40.3) - 0.16
- 0.16
23 Other current liabilities
Y As at As at
it March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Deferred Revenue - 1.68
Statntory dues payable 39.81 431
Advance from Customers 0.48 2.13

40.29 8.12
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24 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended

For the vear ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Revenue from operations
Sale of Online courses 287.62 69.22
Sale of Offline courses 6.62 -
Other operating revenue
Shipping Revenue 0.15 1.56

294.39 70.78
24.1 Disaggregated Revenue

The Company derives revenue from transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time as given below:
Timing of recognition:
At a point in time
Sale of Online Courses 287.62 69.22
Sale of Offline courses 6.62 -
Shipping Revenue 0.15 1.56
Total 294.39 70.78

24.2 Reconciliation of revenue with contract price

Particulars

For the year ended

For the vear ended

March 31,2023 March 31.2022
Contract Price
Sale of Online courses 287.62 74.51
Sale of Offline courses 6.62 -
Shipping Revenue 0.15 1.56
Adjustments:
Discounts - (3.61)
Deferred Revenue - (1.68)
Total 294.39 70.78

24.3 Contract balances

Revenue from operations recognised is collected as per the terms of the contract. Trade receivables have been disclosed under Note 11.

244 Performance Obligations :

The Contracts with customers are structured in such a way that the Company has the right to consideration from a customer in an
amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the performance obligation complete to date and the Company has
the right to invoice. Therefore, taking the practical expedient, the details on transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligations are not disclosed.

r
=
n

Information about major customers:
The company eamns revenue from its subsidiary companies which constitutes more than 10% of the company’s total revenue. (Refer

Note 41)
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Other Income

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Income from Sub Lease of properties 166.68 -
Miscellaneous Income 1.64 -
168.32 -

Cost of materials consumed

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening stock of Packing Materials 0.37 0.34
Purchase of Packing Material - 0.20
Less : Closing Stock of Packing Materials - (0.37)
0.37 0.17
Purchase of stock - in - trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
] March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Purchase of Books 5.32 23.44
5.32 23.44

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening Stock of Books 19.37 39.74
Less : Closing Stock of Books (18.70) (19.37)
0.67 20.37

Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Salaries. wages & Bonus 58.99 124.44
Contribution to provident and other funds 241 2.69
Staff welfare expenses 0.04 0.10
Giratuity 293 2.15
64.37 129.38
Finance Costs

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Interest on Borrowings (Refer Note 41) 545.56 4324
Interest on Lease Liability 88.28 -
Interest - others 1.12 0.04
Loan processing charges 6.19 =
641.15 43.28
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31 Depreciation and amortization expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4) 0.50 0.30
Depreciation on ROU Asset (Refer Note 3) 116.96 =
Amortisation on Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4) 128.11 90.41
245.57 90.71

32 Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Cross charge of common expenses 62.47 324.14
Faculty content cost 1.30 3247
Cross charge of studio expenses 1.45 25.18
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 76.00 318.93
Rent 15.81 4.99
Repairs & maintenance 0.02 0.10
Payment to the auditors (excluding Gst)* 4.00 4.00
Legal and professional charges 18.86 82.93
Rates & taxes 822 1.64
Printing & stationery 0.33 0.12
Bank charges 6.94 0.21
Communication 145 1.61
Manpower charges 21.22 560.45
Subscription charges 8.20 6.96
Travelling & convevance 1.19 1.81
Payment Gateway Charges 0.38 1.07
Remuneration to Directors 6.00 1.20
Boarding and Lodging Expenses - 0.03
Postage and telegram 0.01 0.16
Business Promotion Expenses 0.63 -

Delivery Partner Fee 457 =

Freight Charges 0.97 1.13
Miscellaneous expenses - 0.43
Total 240.02 865.56

* Payment to Auditors

Auditors Remuneration

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Statutory Audit 4.00 4.00
4.00 4.00
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33 Tax expense:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31,2022

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
a) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year - -
a) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2023
linbiliti els) i - T TR
I)cl’erred tax liabilities /(assets) in Opening | Recognised in Remgnfsed in MAT Credit Closing balance
relation to: balance profit or loss ocl
Property, plant, and equipment and
Intangible Assets 9.20 17.66 - - 26.86
Right of use Assets - 8.8] - - 8.81
On expenses allowable on payment .
bt © Sl (9.20) 9.35 - : 0.15
asis
Financial Liability measured at
: ' - 35.82 - - 5.82
amortised cost (35.82) (35.82)
b) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2022
Del’erred tax liabilities /(assets) in Opening | Recognised in Rccogniscd in MAT Credit Clasing balaiee
relation to: balance profit or loss ocl

Property, plant, and equipment and
Intangible Assets

On expenses allowable on payment
basis

9.20

(9.20) -

9.20

(9.20)

Reconciliation of accounting profits

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Accounting (loss) before tax (734.76) (1,102.13)
Income tax rate 26.00% 26.00%
At statutory income tax rate (191.04) (286.55)
Non - deductible expenses for tax purposes

Property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets 17.66 0.20
Right of use Assets 8.81 -
On expenses allowable on payment basis 935 (9.20)
Deferred tax not considered on business loss and unabsorbed depreciation 155.22 286.55

At the effective income tax rate

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss

Based on assessment of probability of taxable profits against which the deferred tax asset pertaining to unabsorbed business loss and
depreciation loss amounting to Rs. 513.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - 355.44 Lakhs) can be utilised, the company has not recognized
deferred tax asset thereon. The company shall continue to assess the recoverability of such deferred tax asset at the end of every

reporting period.

—
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34

Earnings / (Loss) per share

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company (734.76) (1.102.13)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 28.68,008 10,00,000
Basic loss per share (Rs) (25.62) (110.21)
Diluted loss per share (Rs) (25.62) (110.21)

Disclosures required by the Micro and Small Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under MSMED Act and remaining

. 432.36 4.21
unpaid
(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED act and remaining unpaid 039 0.04
(11i) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED act, beyond .,
the appointed day during the year 9.13 -
(iv) Interest paid. other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year ) )
(v) Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year ) )
(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for 037 ]
pavments already made ’
(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years 0.04 -

36

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Contingent liabilities & commitments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

37

Contingent liabilities
Commitments
Corporate Guarantees

Operating segment

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly reviewed by the
Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM considers the business from both business and product perspective
based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The operating
segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit / (loss) amounts are
evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company's
perdominantly related to sale of comprehensive learning programs and, accordingly, this is the only operating segment.
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38 Financial instruments
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern, while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic

investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, long-term borrowings and other short-term borrowings.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
cquity holders.

. i March 31, March 31,
Gearing ratio: 2023 2085
Debt 18.108.10 1,154.63
Less: Cash and bank balances 4.79 8.53
Net debt 18,103.31 1,146.10
Total equity 16.817.61 (1,264.87)
Net debt to equity ratio (%) 107.64% (90.61%)

Credit risk management
Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents is generally low as they have been held with the banks/financial institutions. who have been
assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows. The company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary (o
meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal requirements.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the carliest date
on which the Company can be required to pay.

March 31,2023
Particulars Duein Ist | Ducin2nd to| Due after 5th Carrying
year Sth year year amount
Borrowings (Fixed rate instrument) 2,622.06 15,486.04 - 18,108.10
Trade payables (Non - interest bearing) 549.04 - . 549.04
Other financial liabilities (Non-interest bearing) 277.04 - - 277.04
3,448.14 15,486.04 - 18,934.18
March 31, 2022
Particulars Due in Ist Duein 2nd to | Due after 5th Carrying
year 5th year year amount
Borrowings (Fixed rate instrument) 1,154.63 - - 1,154.63
Trade payables (Non - interest bearing) 467.24 - - 467.24
Other financial liabilitics (Non-interest bearing) 41.52 - - 41.52
1,663.39 - - 1,663.39
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March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but - .
fair value disclosures are required): il Nil
39 Fair value measurements
Financial instruments measured at Amortised cost
. : . March 31. March 31
Fi 1 asset N ' '
inancial assets ote Hierarchy 2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 12 Level 2 4.79 8.53
Total financial assets 4.79 8.53
. R, , . . March 31, March 31,
Financial liabilities Note Hierarchy 2023 2022
Borrowings 19 Level 2 2.622.06 1,154.63
Trade payables 20 Level 2 549.04 467.24
Lease Liabilities 5 Level 2 159.03 -
Other Financial Liabilitics 21 Level 2 277.04 41.52
Total financial liabilities 3,607.17 1,663.39

Fair value measurement

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are

(@) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value. the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as under:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded
bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If onc or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securitics, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3,

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
-the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
-the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other current financial liabilities are considered
to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
The borrowing rate of the Company has been taken as the discount rate used for determination of fair value.
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40
40.1

40.2

Retirement benefit plans

Defined Contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plan of provident fund. Additionally, the company also provides. for covered employees, health
insurance through the employee state insurance scheme.

Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amount of disbursement required and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The Company has
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 an amount of Rs, 2.41 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 - 2.69 Lakhs)
towards expenses under defined contribution plans and included in'Contribution to provident and other funds'

Defined benefit plans

(a) Gratuoity

Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, In terms of the same, gratuity is computed by multiplying last drawn salary (basic
salary including dearness Allowance if any) by completed years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months and again by
15/26. The Act provides for a vesting period of 5 vears for withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity payable to an
employee on separation, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in cases where an
enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

As per Section 4(2) of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, an employer shall pay gratuity to the employee for every completed year of service or
part thereof in excess of six months. Since none of the employees of the company have not completed six months as on 31st March 2021, there
is no gratuity provision accrued for the year ended March 31, 2023,

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and salary risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be

Interest risk : : g .
= partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the
best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment,
An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reference to the
Salary risk future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability,

Mar 31, 2023 (Amount in lakhs)

Particulars Current Non-current

Provision for Gratuity - 058

‘The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Attrition rate 8% 5.00%
Discount Rate 7.18% 7.32%
Rate of increase in compensation level 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amount recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

For the year ended | For the year ended

e March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Current service cost 21 2.15

Net nterest expense 0.16

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) -

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 2.93 215

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit hability comprising (4.50)

Actuarial (gains)/losses - -

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (4.50) -
(1.57) 2.15

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'employee benefits expense’ in profit or loss

The actuarial gain/ loss on remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
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40.3

The amount included in the balanee sheet arising from the Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.58 215
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 0.58 2.15
Funded - -
Unfunded 0.58 2.15
0.58 2.15

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Parteiiae March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 2.15 -
Current service cost 277 215
Past service cost - (vested benefit) . -
Interest cost 0.16

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (4.50)

Actuarial (gains)/losses -

Benefits paid - -
Closing defined benefit obligation 0.58 2.15
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Parfieniag March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening fair value of plan assets - B
Expected return on assets - -
Contributions . g
Benefits paid = s
Expected return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) - -
Closing fair value of plan assets - -
Defined benefit obligation sensivities were as follows:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
1) DBO - Base assumptions 058 2115
2) Discount rate: +1% 0.50 1.80
3) Discount rate: -1% 0.68 259
4) Salary escalation rate; +1% 0.67 258
5) Salary escalation rate: -1% 0.51 1.81
6) Attrition rate: 25% increase 052 196
7) Auntion rate: 25% decrease 0.67 238

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience. The estimates
of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account, inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors such as

demand and supply in the employment market.

Compensated absences

The compensated absences cover the Company's liability for privilege leave provided to the employees. Based on past experience, the Company
does not expect all employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months. Considering
the accrued leave balances as at the 31st March, 2022, the amount of provision for compensated absences is Nil

March 31, 2023 (Amount in lakhs)

March 31, 2022 (Amount in lakhs)

Particulars Current Non-current

Current

Non-current

Compensated absences - 0.01

0.16

1.65
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41 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties having significant influence

Entities having control or controlled by the Company

Holding company
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)

Fellow subsidiary companies

Veranda Race Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly Bharathiyar Education Services Private Limited)
Veranda [AS Learning Solutions Private Limited

Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited

Veranda Management Learning Solutions

Veranda Administrative Leaming Solutions

Veranda Learning Solutions North America, Inc.

J.K Shah Education Private Limited

Key management personnel (KMP) and their relatives
Sri. K.Praveen Kumar

Sri. R.Rangarajan

Sri. S.Lakshminarayanan

(Since September 17, 2021)
(Since September 01, 2022)
(Since September 15, 2022)
(Since May 11, 2022)

(Since November 01, 2022)

Director
Director
Independent Director

Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives have significant influence

Grasslands Agro Private Limited
SSI Ventures Private Limited

b) Transactions during the vear

Amount
S.No. Nature of transactions For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
I{Loans and Advances taken from
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited
: o s. 945.50
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited) SN 4
Veranda Race Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly Bharathivar Education Services Private Limited) 1.464.60 =
Veranda IAS Leaming Solutions Private Limited 1.171.68 -
Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited 1,325.00 -
Veranda Management Learning Solutions Private Limited 1.171.68 .
SSI Ventures Private Limited 1.100.00
2|Loans repaid

Veranda Learning Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited) 5014.60 %74
Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited 20.00 .
Grassland Agro Private Limited - 12.45
Mr. R. Rangarajan - 0.07
Mr. K. Praveen Kumar - 0.07




Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Excel Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

CIN No.: USO100TN2019PTC126711

[All amounts in Indian Rupees (Lakhs), unless otherwise stated]

S.No Nature of transactions

Amount

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the year ended
March 31,2022

L]

Interest on borrowings

Veranda Learning Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Veranda Race Learning Solutions Private Limited

Veranda IAS Learning Solutions Private Limited

Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited

Veranda Management Learning Solutions

SSI Ventures Private Limited

Grasslands Agro Private Limited

4|Cross charge of common expenses
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)

Cross charge of studio expenses
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)

h

Investment in Subsidiaries
J.K Shah Education Private Limited

=S

-

Income from Sub lease
J.K Shah Education Private Limited

8|Income from Recovery of common expenses
J.K Shah Education Private Limited

Directors Sitting Fees

b=

S Lakshminarayanan
R Rangarajan
K Praveen Kumar

134.97

7481
59.85
66.81
59.85
34.60

62.47

34,917.66

166.68

275.00

2.00
2.00
2.00

42.81

324.14

0.40
0.40
0.40

o
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¢) Balance outstanding at the year

Amount
S.No Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
| {Loans from
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited 2
. . L 2.246.00 154,63
(formerly known as Veranda Leamning Solutions Private Limited) 2460 hisae
Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited 1.305.00 .
Veranda IAS Leaming Solutions Private Limited 1.171.68 “
Veranda Management Learning Solutions Private Limited 1.171.68 3
Veranda Race Learning Solutions Private Limited
(formerly Bharathiyar Education Private Limited) 1,464.60 »
SSI Ventures Private Limited 1.100.00 .
2|Trade payables
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited 19.28 1.60
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)
3|Advances (Other than capital advances)
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited R 61.80
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)
Veranda Race Leamning Selutions Private Limited 489 1
(formerly Bharathiyar Education Private Limited) '
4|Interest Accrued
Veranda Learning Solutions Limited
: ; i s 168.99 41.52
(formerly known as Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited) s
Braindce Education Solutions Private Limited 11.30 =
Veranda IAS Learning Solutions Private Limited 10.15 5
Veranda Management Learning Solutions Private Limited 10.15 -
Veranda Race Learning Solutions Private Limited 12.69 -
581 Ventures Private Limited 3114 -
5|Trade Receivables
J K Shah Education Private Limited 59.40 -
6|Security deposits
J.K Shah Education Private Limited 168.00 =
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42 Ratio analysis
a) Current Ratio = Current Assets/ Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Current assets 827.67 244 .25
Current liabilitics 3,647.46 1,671.67
Ratio 0.23 0.15

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company has borrowed funds during the year to

acquire a new subsidiary.

b) Debt - Equity Ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current

borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Total debt 2,622.06 1.154.63
Total equity 16,817.61 (1,264.87)
Ratio 0.16 (0.91)

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has horrowed loans

to acquire a new subsidiary.

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal

repayments

; March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars
Loss for the year (734.76) (1,102.13)
Add: Non cash expenses and finance costs 886.72 133.99
Depreciation and amortization expense 245.57 90.71
Finance costs 641.15 43.28
Earnings available for debt services 151.96 (968.14)
Interest cost on borrowings 545.56 43.24
‘Total interest and principal repayments 545.56 43.24
Ratio 0.28 (22.39)

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has borrowed loans

to acquire a new subsidiary.

d) Return on Equity
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars
Loss for the year* (734.76) (1,102.13)
Total Equity 16,817.61 (1.264.87)
Ratio (0.04) 0.87

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has issued rights

shares to all its sharcholders.

e) Inventory Turnover

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Changes in inventory 5.37 20.37
Closing Inventory 1870 19.74
Ratio 0.29 1.03

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has adopted new

strategy to reduce its offline sales which has impacted its changes in inventories.
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) Trade Receivables

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Credit sales 204.39 70.78
Closing trade receivables 59.40 0.99
Ratio 4.96 71.49

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared 1o previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has adopted new

strategy to prioritize more on B2B sales which has more credit period.

g) Trade payables

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Credit purchases 246.38 909.53
Closing trade payables 549.04 467.23
Ratio 0.45 1.95

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has incurred
transaction costs on account of acquisition which are still payable as on March 31, 2023.

h) Net capital Turnover Ratio =Revenue from Operations divided by Net Working capital

(whereas net working capital= current assets - current liabilities)

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations 294.39 70.78
Net Working Capital (2,819.79) (1,427.42)
Ratio (0.10) (0.05)

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has borrowed loans

10 acquire a new subsidiary.

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Revenue from operations

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Loss for the year (734.76) (1,102.13)
Revenue from operations 294.39 70.78
Ratio (2.50) (15.57)

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has incurred

transaction costs on account of acquisition.

j) Return on Capital employed- pre cash (ROCE)=Earnings before interest and taxes(EBIT) divided by Capital Employed-

pre cash

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Loss) before tax (A) (734.76) (1,102.13)
Finance Costs* (B) 641.15 43.28
Other income* (C) - -
EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)-(C) (93.61) (1,058.84)
Capital Employed- Pre Cash (J)=(E)-(F)-(G)-(H)-(I) 47,648.29 (1,269.60)
Total Assets (E) 51,300.54 410.60
Current Liabilitics (F) 3.647.46 1.,671.67
Current Investments (G) % =
Cash and Cash cquivalents (H) 4.79 8.53
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (1) - -
Ratio (D/J) (0.00) 0.83

Change in ratios of more than 25% compared to previous year is because the Company during the FY 2022-23 has borrowed loans

10 acquire a new subsidiary.
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43 Going Concern

The Company commenced operations during the period ended 31 March 2022 and is also in the process of developing further
content for expanding their offerings and customer base. Based on the business projection for FY 2023-24, the Company is
expected to have adequate funds to meet its obligation as they occur. Further, the Holding Company [Veranda Leaming Solutions
Limited (formerly Veranda Learning Solutions Private Limited)] has provided a letter of continued financial support up to 30
June, 2024, Therefore, despite erosion in the net worth of the Company, considering the continued financial support from the
holding company and the current initiatives of the Company during the period which are expected 10 yield revenue in the future,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

43.1 Board of Directors of Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited (“Subsidiary”™ or “Veranda XL") in its mecting dated
January 17, 2023 has approved merger of Veranda XL Learning Solutions Private Limited (Veranda XL.) and J.K Shah Education
Private Limited (Step Down Subsidiary). Subsequent to year end, application for merger has been filed by Veranda XL with
National Company Law Tribunal for approval.

44 Other Statutory Information

i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any Benami property.

i1) The company reviewed the status of all its customers and vendors as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, in MCA portal, and
observed that the company do not have any transaction with struckofl’ companies under section 248 of companies Act, 2013 or
Section 360 of Companies Act, 1956.

iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iv) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

v) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with any oral or written understanding that the intermediary shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified i any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

vii) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities (funding party) other than as
disclosed in Note 16 and Note 19 with any oral or written understanding (whether recorded in writing or Otherwise) that the
company shall:

(a) dircctly or indirectly lend or invest in any other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
funding party (ultimate beneficiarics) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiarics,

viii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

ix) During the financial vear, the Company has not revalued any of it's property, plant and Equipment, Right of use asset and
Intangible Assets.

x) The Company has not granted any loans or advance in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
the related parties (as defined under companies Act, 2013), either severally or Jointly with any other Person.
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45 Comparatives
Previous vear figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

46 Approval of accounts
The interim financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for
issuance on May 27, 2023,

half of the Board of Directors
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K Praveen Kumar R Rangarajan
Director Director

DIN: 00591450 DIN: 00591483
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai
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